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on the stand for further direct eX~ffiination.

sent. Cas~ resunsd.

DUT ing the

yesterday makes me

H A R RIM A N,

A Did 1 say '851 If 1 did it was a mis-

All together.

You said you went to your office on1Y.~(jccasionally?
~--"_C'''''''''-''.h''''''''''_'''~';'''>'''~'.,.' _ _':'_'.'""'''''_~>'_'''__ hf'-'''_';''~' __;·__~'C-'''-:'>·-'·.''''·-''·' , ..c;"-t"·.-·<,.,......,.~-,,,.-·-"_· .. ,_····· \,,'., I .....

Only occas ional1y dur ing th~".l~>~,,~~Qnj;h .
~~ __~••,'- ;..~""" J -.",---<

VOu".=~~~>;·~;~'gag;d in the matters of the campaign then?

yesterday? A Only occasionally, but before you go on 1

WEDNESDAY, JULY 10, 1912; 10 A.M.

Defendant in court with counsel. Jury called; all pre-

wish to state that the transcript

MR. ROGERS. Q Mr. Harr i nan, did you go to your off ice,

that is, your law office inthe Higgins Building fre rluent1y

or otherwise during the campaign to which you referred on

say that 1 began practicing the last time in '85. It

should nlake rrJe say in 1905.

MR. ROGERS. 1 agree with the stenographer myself, 1 think

take. 1905 1 came back the last time after my sickness.

1 didn't arrive in I,os Angeles the first time until '86.

A

you said '85.

Q

A

morning? A Quite a little before 8.

Q Were you at your office the morning of November 88th?

A I was.

Q, From where did you coIDe to the office? A From home.

Q Fron! home. What time, about, did you leave home on that
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1 we took our meals down tQ'.'in all together j 1 left early.

2 Q HoW did you come? A Walk.

3 Q Where did you live? A 1207 Maryland street, that is

4 I, between Fourth and Fifth, a block or tV'TO west of Figueroa

5 a ahort atreet.

6 Q Did you I:39.Y--You say you walked? A Walked.

took the machine from there to the off ice and from the of-

Did you come direct to your office or did you stop any

Corner ofA

A 1 walked down to the German-

American Safe Deposit Vault and after .visiting the Y.?-~1t

fice to the headquarters.

Q Where is the German-American Safe Deposit?

Four th and Spr ing •

where on your way down?

7

8

9

10

11

14 Q Approximately, according to your recollection, what time

15
1

16 .

17

did you arrive there? A Well, it was a little after 8,

1 don't remember, probably 15 or 20 minutes, somewhere

along there.

18 Q. Did you wait- any time at the vault or not? A Waited

19 until they opened~ They open at 8:30, 1 believe.

Q Did you go to the vaul t? A I did.

Q What did you take from the vault? A ~500 in gold !-<-IQ In gold? A Yes, Bir.

Q 'Did you take any currency at all? A No, Bir • I
Ci What did you do wi tl: the $500 in gold that you got out

20

21

22

23

24
25 I of the vault that rrorning? A On the day before--

261 Q You say on the day before? A On the day before,

I
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note.

was on the 27th, the First National Bank presented this

1 told him to be at the of-

You say this note?Q,

the headquarters and told me.

\
MR. FREDERICKS. May we see it, if it is going to be used?

A To my office to ;'hr. Russell, who was clerk in the office, I
and demanded payment. Mr. Russell, on that day, caXHe to \

1

2

3
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5
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7

8 fice early, that 1 would be there on the following money

9 with the cash, stopping at the vault and that 1 would give

10 him a check, and that he could then deposit the money in the

11 bank and pay the note. On the morning of the 28th,

12 following the presentation of this note, I came past the

13 vaul t, got the money, took it to the off ic e, gave it to ~!.r.

14 Russ ell J signed the check for the amount of the no te, told

15 hi n: to deposi t the 500 in the Cal ifornia Savings Bank,

16 which he did, and to inquire of them if there was sufficient

arr~unt to cover the check; the check amounted to about $60017

18 1t Vi as a lit tl e a hor t • On the folloVling day be came, on--0;-- - _

19 the 29th, informed me that ffiy balance was a little.-EhQt.~_

20 I went with him again to the vaul t, got $100. He depoG i ted

21

22

23

it in the bank and paid the note on the 29th, and the stffinp

on the note will ahow the date of pay rrent and the check

will show the date it 'N9oS dr9own.

24 Q ~ow, you ha~e spoken of this note which you have pro-

Is this the note you referredducedi counsel has seen it.

to in your testimony that I now show you? A
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circumstance may be introduced in evide as part of the

As far

physical fact, any

thh only object of it,

his recollection is

There is no dispu te about the

care anything about that--about

been paid, but,assuming it

has it on this case?

case.

--as sort of accentuating, if po ibIe, his

the fact that the

of the issues in

fact, your Honor,

as the witness using

concerned to fix the date,

had been

A 1 beg your pardon,

MR. ROGERS. If your Honor

he has done that and we raised no objection.

A That is not the object of it, pardon me.

note that the First National Bank presented to me at my

office ~ the 27 th •

MR. ROGERS~ 1 offer this in evidence •

. '"MR. FORD· T~which we object on the ground it is incom-

petent, irrele~ t and immaterial and not pertinent to any

MR. ROGERS-

tes tin;ony of a wi tnes8 to which he refers They in troduced

Franklin's deposit slips and one thing and

MR. FORD. Those were moneys actually

THE COURT. 1 cannot read th3.t stanlp on ther e,

testimony.

MR. ROGERS· You are not a lawyer at this time, you are a

Vi i tnes8 and 1 Will take

got my best glasses With me this morning.

kind--
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1

2

UR ROG,~~~~=_?-g~t.i~Y01lX-H(,)ir~~~~are pretty

good.'

3 Tlfil: COUffi': Yes) I read it now. The stamp says "Paid

4 November 29) 1911." Do you want it in evidenc e1

5 l1R roGERS: yes sir, I offer in evidence the 'whole no te,

6 together with the stamp.

7 THlJ: COURr: Defendant's exhibit in order. Objection over­

S ruled.

9 THE CLERK: Defendant's exhibi t G.

10 MR "ROGERS: As soon as it is marked, I wi~l put it in th.e

11 record. CHote marked.) Certain pencil figures on the

12 left-hand corner, do you care to have them in?

13 MR FREDE.RICKS: Not unless they are material.

14 bfR "ROGERS: In the left-hand corner, "$55?tt, and two

15 naughts above the line. ttEl Monte, Cal., october 20,

16 1909. On or before two years after date, for value re-

17

18
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20

21

c eived, I promis e to pay to NEUl:i.e 1}obyns, Fluvia Dobyns,
I

Thomas William Dobyns and George Perry Dobyns!.' scratched

out /1 ~~~JW::kolLaJ_====-

~-Q£--ia-~tont~,-~.-,-gr',order, at its banking house in

El Monte, th e sum of Five hundred and fifty-seven dollars

22 with interest at the rate of f5% -- tt figure 8 __ tt~ per

and should the interest not be so paid then the Whole

annum from date until paid, interest payable semi­

annually, and if not so paid, to be compounded semi­

annually and bear the Brone rate of interest as

23

24

25
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sum of the principaland the interest shall b ec om e immediate­

ly due and payable at the mption ~ the holder of this

no t e. Shoul d suit be c ommenc ed to enforc e p cyment of

this note----- agree to pay the additional sum of 10% on

principal as attorneys fees in said suit. principal and

interest payable in gold coin of th e United States. Pre­

sentment ~nd demand for payment, protest and notice of

protest are waived. 11 Signature, ".Job Harriman."

Certain figures, "921 Higgins Building", "11/2?" in pen-

10 ,cil. "November 23,1911", in rubber stamp across the face,

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19
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21

22

23

24

in the stamp "Collection Department, Paid NO! ember 29,

1911. First National Bank of Los Angeles, Cal." On

the back Endorsed, "5/1S/ll. Paid interest to December

4/10, $50". Two small naughts above th e lin e. tlpay

to First National Bank of Los .Ang el es, Calif. for coln

First National Bank of El 1.ronte, It somebody "Worth EVerett,

A.C." Now, you say youwent there to the safe deposit

vault on the morning of November 28, and got $500 in gold

coin which you gave to ur Russell, which proved not a.uf'fi­

cient to balmce your account. Have you your bank book of

that time? A I have.

Q Will you.produce it? A I will.

Q Is that the bank book which you now shoVl me? A That

is th e bank book.

California Savings Bank of Los Angeles, California,

Do you know that this

25

26
in account vdth .Job Harriman.
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1 book VJaB kept in th e ordinary course of' busin ess? A It

2 was.

3 Q Do you mow that th e ent ri es made t herein are in th e

4 ordinary course of business of the bank? A They are -­

5 they were.

6 Q And your business with the bank? A yes sir.

7 Q And is this the book of th e time or of the date or

8 interval of November 29th and November 28th, 1911? A It

9 is.

10 Q And have you had this in your possession since that

11 time? A All the time excepting when th~ had it, being

12 ba1anc ed.
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to trace his actions at that particula.r time, and ought

Harriman paid a note on the date which he says he did, on

There

-------

4~
bookThn. t is myAAnd this is your book of that time?

it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and self-

of tl' at time.

Q

serving and no foundation laid. The point i8 this:

tte date of the 28th. There may be no contention over the

matter that he depoei ted his money in the bank, $500 in the I

bank, to pay the note on that date--the contention, if ther

ITlight be no contention over the Itatter as to ~vhether !Ar.

MR. ROGERS. 1 offer this in .evidence, if your Bonor please,

in connec tion with the teB timony of this IV i tnesB, par ticu­

larly the depoei ts on November 28, $500, and of November 29,

$100.

1m. FREDERICKS. That is objected to upon the ground that

i8 any contention, will arise--does arise in this regard:

!hr. Harr irran did go to the vaul t on the morning of the 28th.

Mr. Harr irn9.n did get money from the bank on the 28th. Our

position would be that he got $4,000 from the bank on that

day and gave it to ilr. Darrow. The posi tion of the defense

would be that he didn't. Now, if--this would be iu~aterial
I

in any event if he also did this, the fact he did this doe6~t

in any manner pr eel ude the 0 ther •

THECOURT. 1 think that is a matter for argun:ent to the

jury, but it is as counsel has 8uggested a physical fact

that enables ttewitness to account for his whereabouts and
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be received in evidence. The objection i.e overruled.

2 MR. ROGERS. Well, while the bank book is heing marked 1

3 show to the jury t1:e note, With your Honor's permission.

4 I THE COURT. Yes.

5 MR. ROGERS. 1 show the jury the note which has been in

6 evidence.

7 l.ft.R. FREDERICKS. The entire bank book vias offered?

8 MR. ROGERS. The relevancy depends upon the two items which

9 1 related in the offer.

10 THE COURT· You are only offering the book for the purpose

11 of showing those two items?

12 MR. ROGERS. Of course, to make those two items competent

13 the book must go in.

14 THE COLmT. The jury has completed the examination of the

document, proceed.

MR. ROGERS. Now, the defendant's Exhibit H reads as

17 follows: "California Savings Bank of Los Angeles, Los

18 Angeles, Cal., in Account with Job Harriman: it is on the

19 front page of the book. Now, on the book itself, "Dr.

20 California Savings Bank of Los Angeles, In Account with

21 Job Barr iman, Or. 1911. October 21, 500; November 11,

22 --" a figure which 1 cannot read, I don't know what it is.

23 A That is the initial of the teller, 1 think. You see it

24 changes to B later. lit is H and B.

Q "IJovember 11, H 500;" ei ther 500 or 590, 1 don't

wh ich that is. Have to figure it up and find out.
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1 A 1 am not able to say. It looks like a 9 but 1 was not

2 able to say this morning. 1 think it is 500, however.

3 Q "November 13, H 200; rrovember 81, H 160; November 28,

4 I H 500; November 89 j" in rubber B tamp, "1911 B, 100;

5 December 13, 1911, B 549.05; December 28, 1911, B 60;

6 December 30, H 170; January 6, H 200; January 6, 1912,

7 Balance 226.71", below it the figure "50", below it the

8 figure "23"; "January 23, 1912, B 200. On the Cr. side--"

9 A NO, that is a continuation, 6 imply aeon tinuation • TheE

10 are no credits in that book.

11 Q Oh, 1 see. "February 2, 1912, B 300; February 5, 1912,

12 B 1400; February 14,1912, B 100; February 23,1918;

13 B 100; February 87, 1918, B 100;

14
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1 March 2, 1912, H. 125; April 5, Ldgr, 343; April 18, ditto
-

2 marks, ?5; April 24, 1912, B. 100; April 26, 1912, B,

3 100; pencil figures, 1500, nothing opposite. M~ 23,
, .- ....

4 1912, B, 283.?5; ~une 1, 1912, B, 350; ~une 14, 1912, H,

510. I show th e book to th e jury.

6 };fR FREDERICKS: To shorten matters, we will not contro-

7 vert the fact Mr Harriman paid $500 that day and an addi­

8 tional sum on the next.

9 THE COUR!': The jury has examined the EXhibit.

10 ):'!'R ROGERS: The statement m8y be read to the jury. I

11 don't think theu all got it. (Statement of 1fr Fredericks

is that? A Mr Ford has it.

UR :EURn: .Tust a moment. We oqj ect to that as irrele-

UR roGERS: How did lJfr Ford happen to have it? A j\fr--

lfR ROGERS: :Your Honor please, here is the gi st of this

A 1.{r Russell --

I 'vvould like it, please.

whole thing

THE COURr: Obj ec tion overruled. Let him allsy/er.

vant and incompetent.

Q

iTtR FORD: I am looking fo r it, Mr Rog ers. I expec ted

you vTould ask fo l' it.·

read to the j nry. )

HR BOGERS: That is not full enough. Now, 1fr Harriman,

the check for the money paid out upon that note, vhere

12
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A J.!r Russell, whom I paid the money

1m FORD: If the court pI ease, I wish to aid just anoth26
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obj ootion to that. The only object of this question is

to in troduc e a s elf-serving declaration, to detail -vmat

som ebody e1 se did, an d to show how it came to the po ss es­

sion of the District Attorney. Now, the fact is, it came

into the District Attorney --

UR ROGERS: I object to the District Attorneystating

\mat thefact is.

THE COURI.': Just a momen.t, Ur Ford. NoV!, th e court has

ruled upon this question and there is a circumstance

here that in the opinion of the court, th e jury is, en­

ti tIed to have eocp1ained by ,the wi tness in response to

the qu estion.

!'fR roRD: Yes, your Honor, if the court will pardon me

just a moment; it is not so much a question -- it is not

the SUbstance of the question as the answer, Which is not

going to be responsive. The witness knows the official

manner or can state the official manner in which the Dis­

trict Attorney got possession of the document, and further,

I would like, before th e question is answered, to ask

leave to cross- ex:amine him just a moment, in order to pre­

vent self-serving declarations from being introduced in

evidenc e.

J.[R APPEL: We obj 00 t to that, your Hono r. we have aright-­

1m FORD: Just pardon me a moment, Ur Appel: We will

show that th e wi tness is mistaken y,hon he makes the

and I ask leave to show on cross-examination
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I appeal to your Hono r, not to allow him to

2 testify here.. We take th e fac ts from the sworn lips of

3 the vii tnea-s. We take an e;.cc eption.

4
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MR FORD: It will appear in just a moment, and the whole

thing will be dispo sed of, and to prevent any s elf-serv­

ing declarations coming in fran th e 'Ni tnews.
v

TEE COURl': I don, t think that you hmre any right to assume

that ],fr Harriman here is going -to' answer a qu estion in

a way that is not responsive.

MR FORD: Then,! \vill ask your Ronorto caution the \nt­

ness in answering, not to detail conversations.

TEE COURT: I don,t think Mr Harriman needs cautioning.

He is a lawyer at the bar. Read th e question.

UR FORD: If the court will pardon me, ! don't want any

conversation between himself and some other;person in the

absence of lfr Ford in response to this question; that is

what !Y18nt to keep out. ! lmow what is alleged to h81e

occurred and it is to keep that ont, because it is a self-

serving declaration.
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THE CO'L"RT. If ;,ir. Harr iman were not a lawyer 1 would cer­

tainly admonish him to 6 tate the facts that occurr ed and

not conversations that are not called for in this quest ion,

but as to the facts.

MR. ROGERS. Just a morrent, if your Honor please, at the

risk of talking after your Honor has ruled, might 1 sug­

gest that barring of a certain matter here in order that

your Honor may intelligently rule upon the answer of the

wi tnees: Now, Mr. Frankl in has assumed to detail an alleg'2d

conversation between himself and Mr. Darrow in which 1:'1'.

Darrow said, "You needn't worry about Job, or Tltr. Harr im:m,

he has got it all fixed it up. He paid a note on that day

and he has got it a11 fixed up." Now, we purpose to show

that ~,~r. Harriman had testified and Mr. Russell had testi-

fied before the grand jury, and it was in the posseGsion of

the Distr ict Attorney before iiir. Frankl in ever tea t if ied

to such a thing, that is--

MR. FREDERICKS. Doesn't that show that it was all fixed

up?

MR. ROGERS. No, sir, it shows that Franklin was fixed up.

MR. APPEL. It shows that'Franklin was fixed up and he

got his info~mation from the other side.

THE COURT· We are getting aVlay off from the case. The

question is admittedly a proper 1uestion. 1 do not think

this Witness needs any admonition to answer the

directly or sirr.ply. He may answer the question.



4170

A Mr. Ruseell, the same man to whom 1 have referred, was

called before the grand jury in the investigation of this

case. On his return he told me that he had been asked if

he--

TEE COUR T. ¥Vai t a momen t, Mr. Harr iman •

MR. FURD. That was just the point 1 was driving at.

1,m. FREDER leKS. 1t is hears ay, plain hearsSty.

A WeI1, it is a matter of record before the grand jury,

your Honor.

THE COlJRT. This question is calling for this Witness's

knowledge as to whether he knows how Mr. Ford got tha t creek

MR. APT'ElJo It goes further, in view of whs.t Mr. Fredericks

has just said, that this witness had fixed this matter up,

and in view of their staten,ent here and the statement of

MR. ROGERS. Read the question.

(IJast question read by the reporter. )

to do with it. They did not know, your Honor, at that time

that he had gone to tne bank or had had this transaction

[I1r. Franklin that ~lr. Parriman here had gUil ty knowledge of

this affair, as they claim, we have a right to show, your

Honor, that when they came to him, ;,!r. Russell, and said

something to him, that this man upon the witness stand,

then claiming to be absolutely innocent, every act of his

indicated that he was absolutely innocent, every act of his

in giving the inforffiation and of every kind and description

to the other side was the best proof of his having nothing
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unless the information came directly from Mr. Harrirr,an and.

directly from Mr. Russell, who had acted for him, and that

when Mr. Russell came to him snd said something to him as

to who.. t i nformat ion th e other s ide had, 1 imag i1:e that --1

don't know what his statements will be--we have a right to

show that he acted perfectly consistent with innocence and

. with the innocence of the transaction.

MR. FORD. This is the first time in a court of law 1 ever

heard a doctrine enunciated that a witness could explain

his acts by self-serving declarations made upon particular

occasions, but 1 do not think it is necessary to discuss

that phase of the case, because counsel has already stated

that the object of this was to show that these docunents

had come into the possession of the grand jury, they are

in the possession of Ford, andtha~ it was for the purpose

of showing that they had the possession of them befere

Franklin teotified,in order to show up a frame-up between

Ford and Franklin, although he has before tljis time stated

in the record he did not make such accusation, and in view

of the fac t they have made trat aecusation, th e only th ing

necessary is to show the date that went before the grand

jury, that document. There is no claim made at the present

tirre that the District Attorney got possession of the docu­

ment surreptitiously, or in any other manner than a legal

rr,anr.er ir. response to a subpoena to produce it before the

grand jury. We have the docurr,ent in the archives, or
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It is not in the bex, 1

It was introduced as No.
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have in the grand jt;ry exbibits.

have sent upstairs to locate it.

50 before the grand jury.

MR. APPEL' Counsel does not get the ideg.

MR. FOHD. And that being t'te cas'e, how the v;itness carl.e to

give up possession of the document or any self-serving

declarations that he migrt have made while so doing would

not be admissible to explain the co~duct of the witness ;

a witness or a party cannot explain his conduct by state­

ments made by 'timself which are merely self-serving. That is

a rule that is as old as the hills and the reason of it is

perfectly plain, your Honor. A man niay have concrni tted a

criEle, he may have framed up an answer and divert suspicion

from himself,
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He may have expressed certain sentiments, he may have

tried to give them, to give that very frame-up of the

transaction and made remark~,self-servingdeclarations,

while so doing, in order to divert suspicion, in 0 rder to

pretend th at he vvas innoc ent, and then go on and try to

produce those self-serving declarations. The courts from

time immemorial have held that \-vas the most vicious kind

of evidence classed as hearsay, and not admissible at all

under any circumstances, and if your Honor wants decisions

to the admissibility of s elf-serving declarations we can

furnish thollsands of them; the century will be full of

them.

HR APPEL: You dontt need to, we will admit that.

lrR FORD: mur theory with regard to this witness is, he

framed up a certain thing to occur vhen he would hale an

explanation and when th e time came wh En those matters were

being investigated that he came fOl'\vard in this investiga­

tion,·that he came forward wl:th a number ofself-serving

declarations; t hat may be the theory we will adopt in this

case, and if that is true, why, if the wi tn ass be allov/ed

to put in evidence those self-serving declarations of the

:!frame-up he prepared to unlo ad -- that is the viciousness

of the principles. I make that by way of illustrating

the point.

MR APPEL: It is not a self-serving declaration. We

admit· a man cannot be peITlitted to sey that he did a
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1 tain thing by way of proving innoc enc e, although I know

2 of one case where a man was allowed to prove his inno-

3 cenc e at one time, but he was peculiarly before fh e court

4 at that .I. •l.J.me. Here is a man that has his own check. We

5 v~nt to show how he passed it to the District Attorney's

6 office. Cannot he say that a man from the District At-

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

tomey's office came and wanted it, a man that we will

show acted as his cgent when going to get it from him?

If I have a document in my hand vihich is my oym, your

Honor, and it is found inth e hands of counsel on the

other side, and I ask "How did he happen to get it?lI;

"Let's see, he sent a deputy sheriff over there--.'at

least a deputy sheriff came to me and ask Ed me ~- told

14 me that the District Attorney wanted it and I gave it to

into the District Attorney's office through their ovm

Now, is there any self-serving declaration

.And that is the circumstance to show that it got

procurement.

in that. It simply explains how he parted ~~th it, under

what conditions he parted with it. It is not what he

said to Russell, it is not what he said to Bussell, it is

his ac t of parting with it, accompanying it "j, th the d e­

clarations; ~hat is not" hearsay, as your Honor 'Nell knows,

wi th the act and reeclarations accompanying Each other.

Your Honor may explain an act, and it is not aself-serv­

ing declaration, it is an act; it is this check that wa

supposed to be in his hands, and we are simply explaini

him. II
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is no t goiI\iS to say, "I am innoc ent; I went end told JUdge

Hutton and someone else IVJas innocent of any crime," or

ItI did this and I did that It; he is not doing t hat. Tho sa

how it happened to go there. \va \l!Jant to show that ],fr Rus­

sell '1.ent before the Grand Jury, that some other matter

came up iIi reference to this check, that he went over

there and asked Mr Harriman for it, that the District

Attorney wanted it, and that he parted with it and sent

it over to the District Attorney's office, and subse­

quently Mr Harriman will probably say he found out it had

The very fac t • your

That is not self-serving. Hereached its destination.

Honor, that counsel says he can site thousands of decisions

on the point, is to show tl18t the trouble with the deci-.

sions is this: "\'llh at are self-serving declarations and

what are not U ? We all know what self-serving declarations

are and the very f ac t th ere are many dec i sions on th e sue

ject is proof that the question is not well settled or

there would not be many thousands ofdecisions on it,

as to the application of it.

I,f.R FORD: This is our obj ~tion and I presume we have a

right to close.

THE COURT: yes sir.

MR FORD: Th~ theory upon which your Honor has admitted

the ev idenc e of what occu r.ced at the bank emil. the making

a check and so fo rth, '.'laS merely that it was some slig

eo re self- 3 erving declarations.

25

26

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



4176

1 incident of the corroboration of the witness' whereabouts

2 on that dayor the things that he did on that day,

3

4
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tend to have made it.

sible, wh ich conversations if admi tted ':'lould serve

However, th~t is

Get busy.

1 certainly ciid not hear any such ren·.ark.

Tte cot:.rt admitted it, leaving the weight of it,

1 do r.ot want to--permi t me to corr ect it.

District Attorney and that wtile doing so voluntarily ttat

be made certain declarations, which declarations if admi -

to say anything of the kind.

THE COTmT. That is a misunderstanding of what the court

might have little weigr.t and 1 didn't understand the court

although, as your Honor suid, being of a negative char-

TEE COURT. Tte COt:I t did not so s ta te •

UR. FORD. The Court did not pass upon it.

MR. ROGERS. 1 understand counsel says the. court says it

very little weight.

it is absolut.ely in,rr,aterial and the only possible oeject

rere is to show trat the witness gave it voluntarily to the

acter, its weight may not be very great.

very properly, for the jury to detcrn.ine. !TOW, that 'being

the point, the ~anner in which the District Attorney got

said. If such a ren,ark was made it certainly did not in-

a matter for the jury to determine, that being the point

to be established--

UR. DARROW.

UR. FORD·

MH. ROGERS.

UR. FORD.

MR. ROGERS. 1 do not understand the court to say it hei.el

UR. FORD. 1 do not want to misquote the court.
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1 1:.is scintillating innocence.
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rJow, the declarations of

2 ttat charact.er serve no other purpose than the Witness

3 himBelf saying he is innocent. Now, counsel is absolutely

4 in error as to what self-serving declarations are if he

5 does not know th::.tt to be a self-serving declaration, and.

6 we can br ing in plen ty of au thor i ties on that as to what

7 constitutes a self-serving declaration, and certainly

8 there ought to be no dispute upon such an elementary pro-

9 position. That is purely a self-serving declaration.

10 THE COURT. Tria argunent is for tte assistance of the

11 court and not to enlighten counsel on the other side.

12 1 am satisfied from the statement made by defendant's

13 counsel as to what they expect to show here that thewitness

14 should be allowed to proceed. The court interrupted him

Tte question and answer so far wiD be read to hiw.

IlR. FORD. In order to avoid further complications, do

presented, 1 think that--

THE COURT. Yes, sir, under the peculiar circun"stances here

MR. }'ORD. The answer was, "'You did?"

made by the defendant's counsel as to what they expect to

prove, it io i~po8sible to deter~ine that question at this

tirre arJCi the witness is directed to proceed with hie answer.

upon the theory it seemed as if he was about to reach some

self-serving statereents, but in view of the statements

we underst:md your Eonor's rul ing is to permi t tte witness

to detail tte conversation bet'Neen himself and Mr Russell?
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and again this ITiorn.ing/from one side or the other here, 1

at

·4119

We wi 11 take a

emen, there is a little matter

sir.Yes,, .

, "

colla ter ally.

\ '--------
o ugh t to b e~d;rl::-;S::-::p;::-:O;:;'-:B~'e""'d~·o:;::-I:r--:::-a"%'t-t"""h";'l-s-t-i~_;___ 1t i

~outside of the case and in a sense ~ntiide of tte case,
_/~

lr.forlLa tien/came to my ears las t night
~.-

TEE CO -)
//

v/R. FOGF.RS. What are you going to do wiil1 your exception,
/"

URI FORD" 1 don't know, we have no pr;6tection.
/

TEE COURT. 'J'te reporter will read/the question and the
/

answer as far as it had proceede,d<Nhen the court t~d inter-
/

/'
'J'B'E REPORTER. 1~r. Sn:i th hJ.ythe question ar.d answer.

TI~E COURT. Perhaps you~£n reframe it.

MR. POGERS· It WOUl;':'b'e infir..itely more satisfactory and

1 coul d pr oceed very;· much mor e rap idly and in tell igen tly
. /

if the District Attorney would give me ttat cbeck, and Mr.
I

Ford is diligently looking for it and has so far not been

able to find ~--
THE COURT.~e are about to take a receS8 and perhaps it

will appe¥ during that time. Gentlemen of the jury,
/

bear in ~ind yeur former admonition.
/

rec ess lor five rr.inu tes •
!

(Af tel rec ess • )
/

'J'HCOURtT'

MR. FORD.' We tak e an excep tien.

rupted the wi tnes8 •
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ingc--T5I;-6r~-a"galn;:, t ene a id6-0~r",e~he~=.an.Ltb..aj; he was

availing himself of the opportunity to express hiS~jU­
dices ~ore or less. 1 will not state which side ~~as

,/

un1 eBS it becon"les neces sary i but, this morning,/before
/

court convened, 1 went to the jury room pe/96'~a~lY in the

absence of any officer except myself, mad~ the inquiry of
,,/'-

,/

each and every member of the jury, ~xcept :,!r. IJeavi t t, who
/""

was not then there; since th:lt /t'i~e :md during the recess
/

1 have made the same inquiI'y:/'6f 11r. l,eavi tt, and each man
/'

on the jury has stated p,9s"i tively and absolutely and
/

unequivocally tha.t tlj.8·{e is no auch influence, there has

been no such aug~~on 2~d positively denies th~t any

officer of the~urt haa in any way attempted to influence

y or indirectly or to cast any slurring remarl:s

or make any favoratl~g,!l~m~rLt.§...",~,~L_to the
"",",..",...~...~.;;""",:••t~·~~ -.,...,.,.....~""'"

o th er • ... -..,..,,-,,""~'''''''
l!''''''#"-­

~-«.~e.-----
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"

justice to ~!lr. Aguirre, who has the..'entire confidence of
.i

l

this court; so far as 1 am personally concerned 1 have no
/{

cri ticism whatever and would pot, under the shOWing made,
/

sugge~t or ask to make any pnange, but he insists on it as
/f

,.0. personal matter and for that reason I deem it proper,
I

under the circumstances"~ to make the ar.nouncement, to say
. /

that 1 will take the/matter up With the sheriff and 1
,r

/~

believe make a suitable selection before 2 o'clock this

afternoon. ~/
MR. ROGERS. /if your Honor pI eases, the def ense is not

;1
satisfied.with the mere relation of the situation as your

"/!,'
Honor h.as so fairly presented it. There are circun:stancee

/

connJ6ted \'IT i th this rna tter which lead me to think--
ITHy COURT. ' One n:or.uent, :.ir. Rogers. 1 think if there are

flrther proceedings in this rr.atter, perhaps it would be
~...........-",-_. .- - _.---.._---;"~--....

better to take it in the absence OIthe-j-Ul\-y-----"-"'"
~-,,.....~.

MR~·'ROGERS. No, air. The statement has been made to th

Nevert~ess, 1 regret to have to say at this time that
", --~'--.~~ ...<".,.....

Mr. yartin AgUirre-:""'4\VhO'''iB"""J..D",.,,,2.~this work at

ttis time" informed n'lS before court' co;v.eIiea"''''tf.''ts"rr;orning
\

that under the circumstances he felt that it would} be
/

too embarrass ing to him to proceed and ths..t he mu6 t ask to
, j

be relieved from further duty. 1 again discuss~d the
~

_./
r

matter wi th him during the recess that has j,u'st taken

place, and very much to my regret :.11'. Agui~fe still feels

that his position will be so uncomfortable, that for per­

sonal reasons he ought to be relieve,d". 1 say this in
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4'
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21

jur?, if yrmr ..I:lone:r-p:~~"..:~~",~.~..:""sir, that they

ought to know the full circurr£tances. 1 t~J'nk they ought

to knowhow this matter was brought to youronor 's atten­

tion and what about it and 1 openly charge hre, without

go ing beyond wh at your llonor wi 11 per Itit me)to do, 1

openly charge here, there was caused to bE)' pUblished a
I

criticism of Martin Aguirre for the s017'purpose of offend-
I

ing his wellknown sense of justice and/his pride ir.. order
/

to displace him, to disgr ace him and ,lfh er eby to be placed
I

~i

an in;putation against him, and hecquse of a racial connec-
l

tion, as was stated in that veryfirticle, sir, upon M~

Aguirre, whom we have all known;{ere, 1 since 1 was a litte
I

fellow so big, and all of us Jave loved him and trusted
I

him and believe in him and do now, and 1 say it is a
/

shclnJe and an outrage tha t/th e obj ect of that ar t ic le,
/ .

which is a scandalous a~ scoundrelly.-_ thing, should be

published simply by odending Mr. Aguirre's well known sense
I . .

of justice. 1 say it was a scheme fron: the start and 1
/

stand ready to prQve it. 1twas wr i tten by a man who has

been in the em~y of the District Attorney's office, and

pu bl ished for the purpos e of offending ;,:r. Aguirre, in

22 order that e rr.ight be driven from his position and Mr.

Appel, me tioned in the article, because he belongs to the

same ra~ thereby stanps this as a scandal, a shame, and
I

it ougbt not to cease w·i."~.h.-thiskfrid·o:r·lh1ng,and1 don't I

/ .. _" ..~

pr opo's e, if....your/·-H;~or s ces fit to send n:e to jail
''''''-----
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got it fr om.

MR. ROGERS. Yes, sir.
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I don't i'h-telld to stand here and let Mr. Aguirre be stan,ped
"-----.........._._,~--,..... ~._._••"._._..~~ ........-. __ .-q

in such fashion. 1 call for--tne~-proauclf~~ of the author
\

of that article and 1 would like to cross-ekamine him
i

labout two minutes, and I will shovfwho he is and where he
/

/
t

/'
THE COURT. You meclIl the newspaper article?

/
./

.f
.1/

/'
THE COURT. ;he newspaper ar ticlo/ is not the governing

//
factor in this matter j 80 far/as what Mr. Pogers has said,

/r

1 concur in it and do not r~gard :Jr. Aguirre in any way
,i

l

I
S tamped as having comrni tted any in!proper act. 1 shaD

/"

r eques t the sher iff to/i'Ms ign b im to my depar tment as soon
/

as this case is over<' ;.ir. Aguirre has stated to me that he
/' ~

will be Willingjb accept such assignment, but he has

on personal gp6unds asked to be relieved until this case
/'

is over and solely upon those personal grounds,, //
MR. APPEL. Your Ronor, the information came up t~3.t these

. accu6~ona ware made to ycur Honor in chambers. That in

V~Of those accusationa that thie reporter went cut and

(inve6tigat~§__th~mat~or ~d he took--
~~.~--~

THE COUR T. pOvl is that again,

22 catch it.
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1

2

3

4'

1m APP'EL:-~:lr.t~;m4;;u..l..o.rL...l~~e~t~o~u~s that th e matte r vvas c om-

plain eel· of by som ron e e upon one
:~

side of the case. \
t
I
I

THE COURT: yes sir, I have stated that in this courti

room at this time. /

I,m APFEL: That afteI"'lvards this repo rter went out,,," in­
/~~

vestigate the matter and he taJmi to me last night and
/1

he said the oQjection to Mr Aguirre was because he was a

friend of mine. I stated to him, your Honoi', that he was

my friend, and that I was his friend, but I did say to

him, your Honor, that n~er in my life, and all the of-
/

ficers of this county can come hereto your Honor or to

anyone, and say that I ever asked /him to do a single

"thing for me in a case, or aske,d' them to do an unlawful
/

or improper act. It was an ~nsinuation, an accusation
,..

against me, forsooth, cecause I am that man's friend, and

became, your Honor,,,!.e had' the timerity to talk in that
t

room and h ere and elsewhere in a foreign language, and be­

cause someone, not mentioning names for the purpose of

not offending their feelings, weee \vatching us talking

upon some things not connected with the case. The su~

pic ions of t.~e other si de led to their going into your

chambers arid pointing to me and pointing to this man as
/

dOine.soJil~thing improper in this case. It was for the
. I

. P!lrPose, evidently, of getting even with me. It ,vas fo

I,/~1J..e_plH."~-·e6T castIng-sus:pic·ioii-··fii·at~vouidm1."1'i;;'ate-~.a
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client's interests.

THE COURr:

cotulsel on one side to be in aA;)osition to injure his
/

/9

/
I\'mnt to cl ear ;f.hat up right there, }Jr Appel.

,J/~ ..

There has' been nothing s~id in my presence or in :my hear-
,

. £.:

ing, directly or indir':3ctly, excepting inquiry as to
;'

whether or not yr ;g~irre and Mr Appel were related by
I

blood ties or by ~nsan~uinity, to which I replied to my

best kno~ledge apfd information, not.

}m APPEr.: rf this. and r .rant everybody to understand

it, that th,re is not any blood relationship between

us. but fe is a relationship of eternal gratefUl

friendsh~p for each other, and if that is any disqualifi­

catio~~ain~t this man, it is a disqualification against.
I

me}o serve the interest. s. of thi.3 man h ere in this case.

~, can it be said, your Honor, that we ha.re to go
LT"......,.......;tj_,.,,~~-..-;,-..... ".,' .~,~.' ..._# .....,_.'r.'.."..c-:-.~"...>'"'"L·_.~-'·,·.·_,.,...~<~-"-".,.-c,·,,~ ... ~_.-.~·'''·"::..''-.. __ •.JO:~.':,./·''''--···'·-.··T...,>. __._.~_,.",e • ,.,._ ..._. __ ~ .• ._.~. •

about and meet ourfriends in the court room and any'.vher

improper in my conduct, it is proper and due 0 this de­

fendant th at I should be compell ad to h8V yZything to do
/

with this case that might in some -mxy pr'ejudice the in­
/'

/
t erests of this defendant, your HonoI{/~

/;!
THE COURr: Let me ansy{er -- l

I
1m APPEL: For, your Honor, it will not be proper for

./

1 this defendant. Now, it seems, your Honor, that if any-

2 thine~!!.23 aid com erning .me, cJ)DC..erning--.anY.:

3 or any comrotionretween myself and this man, that that mat­

4 'ter should be inv estigated, and that if there i
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1 els e and:not wen be allcred to greet.. them.Jti,tho.u:t"Jjhese

2 detective's suspicions of our IIctions? Can it raid,

3 your Honor, that I could not talk to your Hono,!', or talk

4 I to counsel on the other side or to anyone, )"!~hout it

5 being said th ere is something \vrong gOing/~n? Have we
/

6 got to isolate ourselves in order to b~ attorneys? Have
j"

7 \ie got to turn away from our'f riend~'~ and not meet
I I

8 them or talk to them? Is it poss.ible that a man, in order
)

/

9 to practice lan, in order to appear for a defendant, must
j!

and those things ~re not don e against great, influential

you 1" Honor, th at tho se things
us

cgainstl\in this paper, serve

10
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,26 1

I

sofar forget his manhood and,/his honor, forget the repu­
I

tation and the honor of his family, that he must do va-ong
.f

I

to practice law? I sUbI!11.t,,.
)

and tho~e insinuationsfcast
/f

to attract the publ:i,;6 to a suspicion ~ainst the man,
I

men. The power /of the state seems to be to pick out one
,
"'.IDom they thinK can stand it. I SUbmit, your Honor, that

/1

is not right/; it is not fair •
. /

TEE COURI':/ ur Appel, lest there might be any suspicion,
/

I took upon myself this morning to do precisely what I
/

have r/cited in open court, and I have stated in response
/to each one made of the thirteen jurors makine thestate-

/
I

ment here, in their presence and hearing, end rech and.try man of them have positively and unequivocally,

~nd unqu$tionably denied that any of the deputies, any
~__~.r~/_.,.~,_-................,.._.,,_~._....~"..........,. _

ficer has attempted bYAdfrection,or.indirectiol},



2

3

1

.418 7

way,~rm~ner to influence t~em,_'r..hai.,.Jtq-!~,~:

any question of reputation is cone erned, that is,.....f...i~. I'
~/

woul.d not· ask ].,rr .Agui;rre to 1 eave this cogrt'''''room for
;f._,!,,.r',,Jf''';'~

4 I anything that has occurred, but he,,'ll:Lmself, has not merely
.'",~ ..-'~
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demanded it, but insist ed.,upon the pe rsonal right to sue h

m €OCtent that the court has felt bound to acquiesce, and
.,,/"
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JUROR GOlJJTNG. 1 think you have found out w .at each and
(

everyone of us think about K~ Aguirre and is honesty and

integrity~ and 1 think you have, put the p opos)tion up to

eac~ and everyone of us, that ws don~~ant him to leave

us. We have tried him and we know 1m, and being with him,

and practically sleeping with him/staYing witt tim, and

we can see a man when we rub up /gainst hi~ like th[~t, and

we have every confidence in hi/. Why should we change now?
I

He has been Vi i th us for six 91: seven weeks. For myself,
I

1 don't know about the reiof them, 1 think they are of tb

same mind, though, we dOTII t care to change. We want an

honest square deal here~and he certainly is giving it to
/

us, and to the cour t .;{TId everybody.
.I

ANOTHER JUROR. 1 agt'in the same n;ind, your Eonor, as ;,lr.
/

Golding./

1m. FREDERICKS. ;lIt seems to me, your Honor, that the
I

only person in/this matter who has exhibited good jUdgment
I"

is Martin Agu{·rre. This is not a matter for discussion in
I

cour t. ;,1:. /Aguirre has taken tte manly ground because there
/

was 8 orne fer i tic is In of rim, he refused to serve in a poe i tio "
I I

where ~e might be sUbject to criticism. That is a stron
/

manly/position for any man to take, and any man who would
I

I .
takE~" a less POSl tion would be less of a man. . Now, that

;

is/hiS position. Mr. Aguirre has said hewaa criticised and

~ refuses to serve, and it is perfectly proper tvat he

~_~ld do so. _l~th..iLk--t.M-~chargeof the jury
--"'::-.---.

be--shoul d step out at any time ther e is anyc-rl·'tl~ciS.n;.,



1 1~ow, that ia all; ·there has beenn'o charge made against Mr.

2 Aguirr e frOf-fl''''eriither·'''~Mi'de-'':-~~There;Ea6'''7~b'een-·fnj·thi.~g f i 1 ed
\

3 against him. The court has a'bsolvedhim; the jj.1ry have
!

!
4 I absolved him, and the matter is not a matter for court

5

6

proceeding at all.

the case.

It seems to me we ahould~rive on with
/i

/

7 TFE COUR T • 1 t ia up to Mr. Aguirre.

8 MR. AGUIRRE. 1 would rather go •. 1 th.ink that is the best

9 for both sides.
./

"

10 THE COlJRT. In view of that statement 1 see nothing elae to

11 do. Mr. Aguirre, the court has made his a ta tement and the

12 jtr y have made treir statement. 1 regret exceedingly--

13 MR • APPEl,. We may have somethir..g to say on this s ide of

14 the house who shall take charge of the jury.

15 MR. ROGERS. In view of the pUblication of this article, an

in v iew of its au tl:orehip and in view of \ihat iD s ta ted in

it, and in view of the offense that M~ Aguirre has taken

at it, in view of the fact 1 have not the sligr.test doubt

in the wor ld f91' the purpose of offending l.~r. Aguirre ani

making him t~ke the rr,anly position which has been adherred

to, 1 thin.k there ought to be some further proceeding to
/,

find ou~about this a little bit. It is the easiest

thingA.n the vlorld--I have seen this done once before, and
f

by the very same people.
,

I

THE COUR T. 1 have not read the article carefu~ly. 1
i .

,,:_•. "-.~,...•->.""!.\ ..._,..~.,,- ...__....~--*~......-....""-....~-
Will do so dur ing the noon hour:--···~·_~-,,,··7.~.'"...._~"'.._.~~-..
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MR" FRE.DERIC1rS·~' 1 think thg,.t.._i.s....a·-n~!rlter·~-'t1i1f'c·b'urt can
~ ~ ...--. <,' _.'c.~,."',..."..,....l.'· ....-_·'''-_....... ,...··~..,...•

t2f~~e'~~-up,·w i tt the j ur y •

THE COURT. ,,' 1 will take that rratter up with you gentlemen

b efor e 1 eav ing t on ig't1_~.~.:lQ.U".,.,Ir:ay_.._pr.Qcaed..w.ith...-the ..A3v-idenc..e,......
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MR" ROGERS. great pleasure in bandiJl~1tto you.
/"

~.--/
THE COt1R T· 1 have a copy on my del;l.k.-''-'~ 1 haven't had time

/~

to read it" I jus t glanced/at it.
//

MR. FREDERICKS. I ;~,Mr'state 1 haven't read it at all,
~y

Sim~rrc~;~t the headlines and saw there was such an
. /~

ar t~cle. 1/
MR. ROGERS. Let me have the check"

A JUROR'. Your Honor, 1 would like to ask i fl.:r. Aguirre
//

,,/'

;otfs~.~... ~~:,.-?~u1dn~Jd.J1..a'z:e ~,_,~.~:-_,~,~on of our own, of one

who was already serving fr~i
_"".,e _.'

"-,_._--,--- '-' «,

Gentleruen.

MR. ROGERS. There has been furnished in open court a check

which 1 now show you, handed to me by Mr. Ford in open

cour t •

1m" FORD. Exhibit No. 50 of the grard jury erllibits.

MR. ROGERS. 1 don't know a tring in the world about that.

That is a matter that will be testified to when it comes.

MR • FORD. So the record Vi ill be straight I have del i ver ed

to ;ir. Rogers 'Exhibit No. 50 of tr.e grand jury exhibi ts.

MR. ROGERS. Is that your sienature at the foot of tte

check which 1 now show you? A That is my signature.

Q And whose handwriting is the body of tr.e check?

I'
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Russell's) 1 think; quite certain. He prepared the check

for me when 1 came down ttat morning.

Q May 1 ask if this is the check you have referred to

in your tes timony? A 1t is.
this

Q ~s~the check With which you paid the note that has been

referr~_d to her~tofore7 A It is.

MR • ROGERS. 1 offer it in evidence.

MR. FREDF.RICKS. 1 presume we have Been it.

THE CLERK. Defendant's Exhibit 1.
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1 1fR ROGERS: The chook is as follows: (Reading:) ".rob

2 Harriman, 521 Higgins Building", in red print. "Los

3 Angeles, Cal. Nov. 28, 1911. p~ to the order of First

4 national Bank, $600 : .,,.; 81 cents. If That is in figures.. ,

5 "Six hundred and 81/100," in figures. "Dollars. To Cal-

6 ifornia Savings Bank of Los .Ang eles, Fifth and Broadway",

7 signed, ".rob Harriman." Endorsed, "First Hational Bank,

8 Los Angel es Clooring Hou se." Rubber stamp on th e back,

under what circumstances was that chook delivered to the

endorsement, "First National Pank of Los Angeles. A B.

serving acts and declarations, incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial.

The check is perforated ...11 th the 1 etters, "Paid 12-1-11."

vlith the f1ll.rther rubber stamp, "Collection Department

Further stamped,

Now, I renew my question:

THE COURr: Obj ootion (}J errul ed. A ]lr Russel, of whom

I have just spoken was called before the grand jury.

On his return he stated to me they asked him if I had been

Nov.29, 1911, First National Bank."

.Tones, Assistant Cashier."

District Attorney's office?

1m FORD: Objected to upon the ground it calls for! self-

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 present at my ,office on the morning of the 28th, and that

23 ~e had answered in the negative. I corrected his stat e.-

24 ~~t, rehearsing the circumstances concerning the P~Ent

of this note. He then remembered that I was there and I

-told him to go back and correct his statement, and to re-

25

26
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1 late the circumstances, which he did. I was then called.

2 before the grand jury andrecited the arone circumstances.

3 The check~as called for, and whether we had taken it from

4 the bank at t hat time, I do not remember, but consented

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

..

to Mr Ford, I believe, having its production,if we had it,

and if not for them tog et it at the bank, and it passed

to him, either through our offices or through the bank,

I don't remember which.
please,

M'R FORD: If the court" we move to strike out all that

, po rtion of the answer of t he wi tn ess relating to t he con­

versation between himself and Mr Russell on the gG'oun d

12 that it is hearsay. In the first place, in passing, I

13 might remark that Mr Russell was violating the oath taken

14 before the grand jury in revealing what h ad occurred b&-

15 fore the grand jury, but \'f8 move to strike it out on the

16 g round that it is hearsay, a conversation 'between himself

17 and JI,fr RUssell, not responsive to the qu estion and incom-

18 petent, irrelE.'Vant and irmnaterial, and self-serving de-
-

19 cleratiol1s, and clearly having nothing to do with the cir-

20 cumstames of producing the check, t.o which his attention.
21 has been called. That portion of the answer which relates

22 to our -- to the tostimony given by Mr Rus sell before

23 th e grand jury is also clearly hearsay. The portion 0 l'

24 the testimony as to vJ1at lfr Russell remembered or as to

25 whether it coincided withl'!"r Harriman's testimony, or whe-

26 ther Mr Harriman gave the same testimony, is also hear-
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1 say, and a conclusion af the witness, and upon all those

2 grounds, I move to strike it out. It seems to me so ap-

3 parent thai;. it is incompetent, I will not argue it but

4 content myself wi th the obj ection.

5 THE COUR'll: The portion of it giving the same testimony

6 may be stricken out. The rest of it is a history of ac-

7 countitlg for how that check got in the District Attorney's

8 office. I think it ,'ViII have to stand for that reason.

9 MR F01ID: If the court please, Ivvant to call your Honor's

10 attention to the fact, he didn't testify toot he gave the

11 check to Mr Russell. He didn't even remember how the

12 check got tefore the grand jury.

13 THE COURT: I think it is important -- ct least, I think

14 it is evidenc e.

151m H.OGERS: Do you recall the d ate on which you were pre-

16 sent before the grand jury, ur Harrim.an? A I do not, but

17 th e transcript "viII probably show.

18 Q Was it) refreshing your recoIl €etion fran the transcript

19 of the proceedings of the grand jury, which appears as

20 January 23rd, 1912, the 23rd day of .Tanuery, does that co-
-

21 incide approxim.ately 'with your recollECtion? A Approxi-

22 mately, but I don't remember.

23 Q At any rate, it ,vas before :Franklinw8s call ed. on th e

24 stand in this case? A yes sir, it was.

26 testified before th e grand jUry, before January 23rd,

Now, di d you wer t ellDarrow at am'" time before youQ25
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thing whatever about the circumstances of your paying

this note, of your getting money from the safe deposit

box, of your giving this check or any circumstances con­

nected vIi th it at all) before you went before th e grand

jury? A I told lJ[r Darrow on th e morning of my conversa­

tion --
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tion we had ever had.

don I t r emen:ber •

Q Six weeks afterwards.

A The record can and will show the date; 1

upon the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and

A 1t was in the latter par t of January.time?

object

January?

Q And that was after Frankl in had been arr es ted J a long

MR • ROGERS. Now, th:t was approximate 1y the 23rd day of

to it. Objection overruled.

THE COURT· Well, it has ~m element of hearsay testimony,

but in view of tte record here 1 think counsel is entitled

MR. FOHD. Just pardon me a moment. To that question we

imrraterial, hearsay, as to what occurred between him and

told n,e he had answered in the negative, and that 1 asked

hirr to correct the statement J that was the first conversa-

A Repeating, 1 told ::!r. Darrcw on the morning ;[;1'. Russell

MR. FOHn' O~ject to trat as a mat.ter of calculation.

A 1 believe so.

THE COURT. 1t is answered.

Mr· Darrow.

MR • ROGERS. Q Did "~r. Darrow ever give you the sum of

~lOJOOO or any otter SUI' whatever to keep for him for any

purpose whate"ver in any pla:Je or anywhere"/ A He did not.

Q Did you ever have in your safe or safety deposit Box,

to ycur kno~ledge, any sum or any amount in currency

con:~ng from ',:r. Darrow for any purpose whatsoever? A 1
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My own currency was there but nothing belonging1

2

not.

to Darrow. My own cash.

41 ~ (

·1

3 Q Or the defense fund? A Not for the defense fund,

4 I no, sir.
MR. FREDER leKS.

5 Q. Or tbe defens e fund, 1 th ink cour.sel saidr A No, not

6 any of the defense fund was ever in rr.y box.

7 MR. ROGERS. Q Did you ever receive any money from DarrCYl

8 in any way, any money i teelf? A No money. 1 received

9 my check on rr.y fee but no cash.

10 Q Yourece ived cr ecks for feeG? A But no cas h •

11 Q Did you ever have arything from Ur. Darrow in rr:oney

12 whatever, from :f.]~ rarrow, except for your fees'1 A No,

13 sir.

14 Q And did. you ever give to Darrow' back any por tion of

15

16

your fees in currency or in any other way? A 1 never

have at any time.

17 Q. jJow 1 call your attention again to the morning of the

18 28th and 1.,.' ill ask you again to state whetner or not

19 when you came up tl:ere that morning oi' the 28th, whether

20 you went into ;,1r. Darrow f S room at all or not? A 1 did

21 not.

22 Q Where did you go, as a matter of fact'? A 1nto rnyown

23

24

125

offi oe •

Q rid you see Franklin trers at al] th::1.t rr,orning?

did not.

A 1

26 Q Was Franklin there to your knowledge? A Not to my
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1 knowledge.

2 Q lITben you canle? A Not to rry knowledge.

3 Q, or while. you were there? A· ~TOt to my knowledge.

4 I Q Did you speak to hirr:? A 1 did not.

5 Q, Did Darrow con;e ir.to your room or see you t'ha t morning

6 60 far as you are aware? A He was not in my room while

7 1 waa ther e and 1 do not know that 'he saw rr:e?

8 Q Did he apeak to you? A He did not.

9 Q Did you have any transaction together whatever tha t

10 morning"{ A None whatever.

11 Q You had a separate office, a business place from

12 Darrow's office across the hall, was it not? A We did and

13 have yet.

14 Q Is that t'he one you went to, then, your own office?

15 A To my own pr ivate office.

16 Q Did you go in to the corner r oem, ~,~r. Darrow's offic e,

17 that r.orr:.ing at all? A I did not.

18 Q. Pow long cid youstay, approx'imately, or as bes t you can

19 give UB the idea, at the Higgins Building that m6rning?

20 A ah , a very shor t t.ime; jus t long enough to sign the

21

22

23

24

25

chect and to tell \:r. Russell to deposit t'he !Toney, ascer-

tain if [;y l-alance 'was sufficient ar.d if not to let rr,e

know. Looked over four or five letters tbat were there arid'

paased away.

Q Where did you go from there? A To the can.paign head-

26 quar ters •
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or the def enoe?

mean the first. office in connection with either our office

san:e side of the hall ,:1:06 e off ice is there? A 1'1": a t iyaS

A Do you

A

towards your office on your side of t!:e hall?

nor th 0 ide of th e bUilding adjoir.ing ours until the hall

Q Where was that? A On the corner of Winston and Main

streets, between Fourth and Fifth.

Q Now, speaking of the outline of your offices there at

under tte control of t~e defense and used for the clipping

that time, as you get off the elevator and corne down the

hall, what is tr.e first office that you pass in going

turns and then offices on the right hand side to the end

sepclIately.

of the hall, also offices on the left hand side of the

Q. Who occupied it? A ;·.ir. Wolfe, 1 believe, was oC0upying

Q No, no, the first o:fi cc that you paso. A The offices

When you get off of the elevator, youturn first to the

north. There are offices there--a row of offices on the

Q Now, next to your OTIn office towards the elevator on t~e

that at tte time.

par t of ttem belong or wer e un der th e control of tl: e

defense, and part of them under the control of our firm

depar tITien t and for th e news depar trr.en t.

Q And your private offi0e is directly next?

sou~h, opening into.

'hall, part of those offices belong to strangers to Ir,ej.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

261



4C:UU

1
Q And your reception room,where is th3.t? A Well, sotlth.

2
Q '1ext'? A Next to mine.

very general.

r ee ep t ion room?

draw it. Q When you went to your offiD8 that morning

where did you go? Hew did you go into your own office?

1 entered t~rough the clipping department into my door.

That is what you have ref err ed to as :.ir. Vi' oli e' s offie e?

Entered through the clipping department 7 A Yes.

And went into your door'? A 1 did.

Yes sir.

-
Y~u did not go into the re ception roo{r.r A 1 did not.

Was ther e any r eaB on why you did not go through the

your off ice ther e v,Tere lc..r ge nun:bero of people tbere.

Mti. FREDERICKS. That is objected to as beir.:.g immaterial,

Q At tnat- time state whether or not when you went to

MR.~OGEns. 1 expect tha.t is true, too general; 1 with-

A

A

Q.

Q

Q

Q.

Q
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A Well, during the campaign, I -- what few·times I

was at the office, ·I usually entered that way. There

were a number usuallywai ting for me, and then if I

di dn' t I couldn't g et allay, and I took t hat way of coming

in and going out vdthout being detained, so I entered and

escaped.

Q Now, there has been some testimony here concerning 1fr

Darrow telephoning you that morning, cnd some statement

made Ol er the telephone -- heving a conversation vii th Dar­

row over the phone. Did you talk wi th Darrow over the

phone that mornfng?

UR JiREDFRICE:s: That is objected to upon the ground it

is immaterial, not relevant. T.h ere h as been no testimony

th at 1fr Darrow talked to thieman, therefore, his rmit a­

tion of t.hat fact, would notbe material.

JrR FORD: It is assuming facts. not in 6I7i denc e. ],rr Frank­

lintestified that he talked to some man or to some person,

ap1=f1rentlJr over the phone. It didn't come out Y\<hether he

talk ed to somebody that -vas there or "mether ur Harriman

had already left or vmether he tal~ed with Mr Harriman

personally. Th ere was nothing in tbe COrIv' ersation to

show one way 0 r the ot her.

THE COURI.': I remember the testimony, ur Ford.

1m FORD: .And it assumes san €thing not in evidenc e.

1m ROGERS: I \vill admit that there is not a bit of Frank­

lin's testimony \"'forth calling evidence, but he did see r
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1 to '2Z>.y that Mr Darrow said, tlIs that you, job?", 1 reving,

2 the inference. I propose to ask Mr Harriman if Darrow

3 said, trIs t.hat you, job"? just for th e purpo s e 0 f s lrow-

4 ing he did not. If your Honor please, it is perfectly

5 proper to show there v~s no telephone communications be­
will

6 tween the two, because thEWA' ar;·ged that there was, and

7 we di c1n' t d eny it.
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bar 28th, did you hold any communication whatever \~th

Jirr Darrow over the phon e? A I did not. .•."'_u" ..·..,.,···,·· .. "

Q Did he talk to you and say, "Is that you, job?", or

any~hing at all, word or syllable that morning? A No

connnunication.

That morning, Uov~-MR ROGERS: Then I will rep eat it.

MR FORD: just a moment. ~et me object, if you please,

l...fr Harriman. We obj rot to the question on the ground that

the matter has been fully covered; the qu estion is lead­

ing and suggestive. He s aid he didn't talk with him,

and that covers the matter very fully.

THE COURT: Obj action 01 errol 00. The qu estion is

MR FREDERICKS: The remark of counsel, there was none of

1fr Franklin's testimony that was worthY to be considered

evidenc e, 5.eems entirely out of plec e at this time, if

he wants to make it in argument

THE COURT: Yes, I think that is improper at this time

],fR FREDEBICKS: ltWe hardly think his evidence is worth

consideringlt and all that sort of thing, and I don't want

to h aJ e to come here and meet a thine of that kind. I

will do that at the prop er time.

THE COURr: It is an improp er statement, and should not

have been made, n~ertheless, I think this question is a

proper question to be propoLUlded ,to the Witness, and the

obj ection is overruled. Read the question, 1~r Reporter.)

THE 'REPORTER: Mr Smith has the question.
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1 answered.

2 MR ROGERS: The night before or evening of the 27th, at

3 any time, or ,the afternoon of th e 27th, did you have any

4 telephonic communication \nth Mr Darrow? A I did not.

5 Q Did hecall you up and ask you whether your safe

6 deposit box or vault or compartment or anything like that

7 was open or no t? A He did not •.
8 lff.R ROGE"RZ: Cros s- ex:amine.

9 THE COUR"l': I gu €ss you vlill hardly begin on c ros s-exam-

10 ination; it is 5 minutes to 12.

11 MR FREDERICKS: It is immaterial to us.

12 (.TU1Y a dmonisl1ed. )

13 THE COURT: The court will now adjonrn until 2 o'clock

14 this afternoon.f
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